
* GVR encourages the Board and members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner.

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, March 19, 2025 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Nellie Johnson (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Dave Barker, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Presentation
A. Thank You to Outgoing Directors

6. Committee Reports – INFORMATION ONLY: Received 2024-25 Committee Year-End Reports
A. Audit - Austin
B. Board Affairs - Hillyer
C. Fiscal Affairs - Johnson
D. Investments - Johnson
E. Nominations & Elections - English
F. Planning & Evaluation - Carden

7. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: February 26, 2025
B. Financial Statements:

1) February Financials

8. Action Items
A. Fiscal Affairs Committee Recommendation to Amend Bylaws for Check Signing Amount
B. Amendment to San Ignacio Villas HOA – CC&R: Article VIII, Section 8.10

9. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes. Speakers are asked to provide their name and GVR member
number. This time is for comments, not for questions and answers.

10. Adjournment



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Committee Year-End Reports 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: March 19, 2025 

Presented By: Information Only Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Committees: Audit, Board Affairs, Fiscal Affairs, Investment, P&E, and N&E 
Action Requested: 
Receive the Year-End Reports by each Committee. 
Strategic Plan: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
In the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) Part 3 Committees: Section 1 – 3.1.1.H states: Neither 
a Committee Chairperson, nor a committee may direct staff. Responsibilities of Committee 
Chairpersons, along with Committee members and staff liaison, are to identify goals in 
conjunction with the Strategic Plan; provide Committee action plans to the Board for 
approval; provide, at least, quarterly updates to the Board; and at year-end identify 
accomplishments of the Committee and continuing tasks for the next year.  

The Meeting Book will have the Committee Year-End Reports as Information Only. These 
reports are received and filed in each Committees yearly folder. 

Attachments: 
Year-End Reports for Committees: 

1) Audit Committee
2) Board Affairs
3) Fiscal Affairs
4) Investment
5) Planning and Evaluation
6) Nominations and Elections

1

Agenda Topic 6



Year-End Report 

2024-2025 
Audit Committee 

Chair: Nancy Austin 
Staff Liaison: David Webster 
Committee Members: Peggy Adelmann, Bert Olson, Gail Vanderhoof 

Committee Purpose: 
3.5.2     Responsibilities 

A. The Audit Committee functions in the capacity of an overseer of
GVR’s financial reporting process and internal controls. This
oversight is conducted by review of the reporting and
communication from a qualified independent auditing firm. The
Committee is not involved in The Corporation’s daily accounting
functions.

B. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are:
1. To recommend a CPA firm to the GVR Board to act as The

Corporation’s independent auditor.
2. To review the independent auditor’s terms of engagement.
3. To review the results of each audit including opinion

qualifications or expectations.
4. To review the auditor’s management letter and GVR

management’s response.
5. To review issues and disputes that may arise between GVR

management and the independent auditor during an audit.
6. To review the adequacy of internal financial controls with

the audit firm.
7. Items explicitly authorized by the Board of Directors.
8. Review IRS Form 990 and recommend acceptance to the

Board.

Priorities Established for 2024-2025: 
• Review the Audit
• Review 990 Tax Return

Timeline for Established Priorities: 
• March 2025

2

Attachment 1



Year-End Report 

2024-2025 
Board Affairs Committee 

Chair: Bart Hillyer 
Staff Liaison: Nanci Moyo 
Committee Members: Beth Dingman, April Hasson Hillard, Ed Knop, Joe 
Magliola, Pat Reynolds, Lanny Smith, Gail Vanderhoof, Jodie Walker 

Committee Responsibilities: 
3.2.2        Responsibilities 

A. Recommend modifications in organizational policies and
governing values to help guide the Board in achieving its strategic
goals. Assist the Board in effectively carrying out its governing
functions in such a manner so as to clearly delineate the roles and
responsibilities between governance and management.

B. Review and recommend revisions, when appropriate, to the
governing documents of The Corporation.

C. Forward all BAC proposed revisions of the Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws to staff for submission to legal counsel
for appropriate action. Any BAC approved change to the CPM
which staff determines needs legal review will also be submitted.
Should legal counsel recommend a revision to a governing
document, it will be returned to the Committee for final review
before being presented to the Board for appropriate action.

D. If a committee, member or staff would like to have the BAC
review a change to the CPM or other governing documents before
it is taken to the Board, the requested change and rationale
should be sent to the chair and staff liaison of BAC at least a week
prior to the next BAC meeting.

Priorities Established and Completed for 2024-2025: 

• Reviewed possible bylaw changes for Committees, Membership
definition, and small changes by December 2024. The BAC preference
was to move any bylaw changes to the 2025-26 BAC for inclusion on
the ballot for 2026.

3

Attachment 2



• Reviewed changes to the CPM including: Tie vote; small verbiage
changes; possibly moving operations out of CPM to keep the CPM
policy focused; code of conduct for members; service animal policy;
guest pass policy; and smoking and vaping policy.

Specific Committee Requests: 

• Add reviewing tie vote for future elections.

Recommendations from Staff: 

• Review Member Code of Conduct policy
• Review Guest Pass policy

Task for Next Year: 

• Continue reviewing Guest Pass policy
• Continue reviewing Member Code of Conduct policy
• Consider adding bylaw changes to the 2026 Ballot: Membership definition,

committee structure, raising check signing limit; and any other changes
brought forth.

4



Year-End Report 

2024-2025  
Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Chair: Nellie Johnson 
Staff Liaison: David Webster 
Committee Members: Dale Howard, Nellie Johnson, Bob Quast, Pat 
Reynolds, Steve Reynolds, Lanny Smith, Priscilla Spurgeon,  

Priorities Established for 2024-2025 and approved at June Board 
Meeting: Accomplishments in BOLD 

• Careful review of monthly financial statements so the FAC can
recommend acceptance by the Board: Completed at each
meeting.

• Thorough review of Staff recommended 2025 operations and capital
budgets, including three-year forecasts so a budget acceptance
recommendation can be made to the Board (Sept – Oct) Improved
budget format and narrative led to more informed
recommendations. Used a 10-year average for projecting
home sales with modifications; may want to review again
next year to determine effectiveness.

• Review and recommend staff enhanced Initiatives capital reporting
and budget process (Sept) Review and recommendations
completed as part of budget process.

• Review and understand MR&R 30-year planning process so that FAC
can understand and make annual MR&R funding recommendation.
Recommend CPM amendments if necessary. (Sept) Conducted
special board work sessions and two FAC meetings on topic
and prepared recommendations for Board’s consideration at
its February meeting.

• Review financial policies and recommend needed updates –
encourage and consider recommendations from our CEO and CFO

 GVR encourages members to voice concerns and comments in a professional, business-like, and respectful manner. 

32

5

Attachment 3



 Recommend policy changes to the pilot “Capital Improvement
Project Policy and Process” based on lessons learned.
Completed review and recommendations were adopted
by the Board at its January meeting.

 As time allows:
 Policy on use of 90-day operating cash in operations vs use of

Reserves: started review of issue at its February
meeting; need to monitor and review next year.

 Policy on changing the budget when factors change (e.g.
custodial services moving back in-house changing expenses
from facilities (to cover contract workers) to personnel).
Issue can be handled as part of budget review process;
no changes to CPM recommended.

 Policy or philosophy recommendation on whether programs
and events should break even. Reviewed and
recommended policy where fees should cover direct
costs; Board approved CPM changes.

 Cash management policy recommendation (working in
conjunction with the Investment Committee) Started review
in February and may need to continue review into next
year to determine options for meeting 90-day minimum
cash on hand policy.

Tasks Carried over to Next Year:  

• Careful review of monthly financial statements so the FAC can
recommend acceptance by the Board.

• Thorough review of Staff recommended 2025 operations and capital
budgets, including three-year forecasts so a budget acceptance
recommendation can be made to the Board: review to include home
sales forecasting methodology (Sept – Oct).

• Continue review of operating cash recommendations to meet 90-day
cash on hand policy; work with Investment Committee on
recommendation.

Resources Needed: 

• Staff produced monthly financial reports for review by FAC.
• Staff recommended annual operations and reserve budgets
• CEO/CFO recommendations for financial policy changes

6



Year-End Report 

2024-2025  
Investment Committee 

Chair: Nellie Johnson 
Staff Liaison: David Webster, CFO 
Committee Members: Michael Cataldo, Dale Howard, Bev Lawless, George 
Losleben, Eric Sullwold 

Priorities and Timelines Established for 2024-2025 and 
Accomplishments (in bold):  

• Review (individually) investment reports monthly with assistance from David
Webster, CFO and summary provided by current Controller/Finance Manager,
Howey Murray, to make sure we are within approved ranges in the IPS.
Contact Chair with any concerns who will then contact David Webster, CFO,
and /or Investment Advisor as needed. Staff sent out monthly reports
that were reviewed by Investment Committee members.

• Attend quarterly meetings with the Investment Advisors to review returns
and discuss any changes to the IPS recommended due to changes in GVR
spending or current markets. Please remember our IPS has flexibility built in
so changes should not need to be made often. Investment Committee met
quarterly with the Investment Managers. Reports were reviewed and
it was determined no changes were needed to the Investment
Policies. Committee reaffirmed usage of current Investment
Advisors.

• Review long- term and short-term operating reserves and review if changes
should be made to maximize investment returns. Reviewed in January.
Adjust continued monitoring next year to determine impact of
operating budget deficit in Cy 2024.

• Spot-check the Chase Bank arrangement and determine if it is still the best
banking relationship from a cost, return on investment and quality of
services provided. August/October: reviewed at the January meeting.
Staff met with Chase and selective fees were adjusted. Chase has
also instituted a “Sweep” account and GVR will take advantage of
that account in order to maximize returns in the checking account.

Task for Next Year: 

• Continue review (individually) investment reports monthly with assistance
from David Webster, CFO and summary provided by current
Controller/Finance Manager, Howey Murray, to make sure we are within

7

Attachment 4



approved ranges in the IPS. Contact Chair with any concerns who will then 
contact David Webster, CFO, and /or Investment Advisor as needed.  

• Attend quarterly meetings with the Investment Advisors to review returns
and discuss any changes to the IPS recommended due to changes in GVR
spending or current markets. Please remember our IPS has flexibility built in
so changes should not need to be made often.

• Review the Investment Policy for Operating Reserves (long- term and short-
term operating reserves) and review if changes should be made to maximize
investment returns. This would be done in conjunction with the Fiscal Affairs
Committee.

Resources Needed: 

• CFO and Controller provide assistance in monitoring investment reports
and reviewing checking account fees.

8



Year-End Report 

2024-2025 
Nominations and Elections Committee 

Chair: Barbara Blake/Candy English 
Staff Liaison: Nanci Moyo 
Committee:  Barbara Blake (Chair until January 2025), Candy English (Chair 
January 2025), April Hasson Hillard (Resigned to run for the Board), Brenda 
Stewart (replace April Hasson Hillard but also resigned), Betsy Walton, Nanci 
Moyo (Administrative Supervisor/Liaison) 

Priorities Established for 2024-2025: 

• Board Candidate Application available year-round.
• Consider ways to promote committee and Director candidacy.
• Organize Candidate Orientation
• Organize Candidate Forums

Specific Committee Requests: 

• Provide Record Date to the Board in October
• Provide Chair Election results to provide to the Board Secretary.
• Provide a Poster Board with Election information to be available in West

Center lobby.

Additional Tasks: 

• Extended voting by a week to allow for the mail processing of paper
ballots.

Task for Next Year: 

• Organize Orientation
• Organize Forums
• Provide Record Date to the Board
• Committee recruitment at Showcase, any Club Open Houses, Volunteer

Clearinghouse event

9

Attachment 5



• Possibly have a special Forum to present Committee opportunities to the
membership.

• Provide talking points to Membership to encourage new members to get
involved in Committees.

10



Year-End Report 

2024-2025 
Planning and Evaluation Committee 

Chair: Jim Carden 
Staff Liaison: Natalie Whitman 
Committee Members: Dave Barker, Candy English, April Hasson Hillard, Ed Knop, 
Bob Quast, Stewart Tagg, Betsy Walton, Diane West, Marge Garneau (ex officio), 
Scott Somers (CEO) 

Committee Responsibilities: 
3.4.2        Responsibilities 

A. Meet quarterly, or as necessary, to review and recommend the
capital projects for the Capital Improvement Plan to the Board,
per the CPM.

B. To be knowledgeable of the Strategic Plan and Five-Year Capital
Plan to ensure that all planned capital projects comply with
these plans.

Priorities Established for 2024-2025: 

• Develop a Five-Year Capital Plan to recommend to the GVR Board of
Directors

Specific Committee Requests: 

• Review and rank Capital Improvement Project requests

Recommendations from Staff: 

• Included in project requests

Task for Next Year: 

• Same; develop a Five-Year Capital Plan to recommend to the GVR Board of
Directors

11

Attachment 6



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, February 26, 2025 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Bart Hillyer (Vice President), Jim Carden (Secretary), 
Nellie Johnson (Treasurer), Candy English (Assistant Secretary), Kathi Bachelor (Assistant 
Treasurer), Nancy Austin, Dave Barker, Barbara Blake, Beth Dingman, Bev Lawless, Joe Magliola 
(2:34pm), Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Staff Present: Steve Kindred (Recreation Program Director), Nanci Moyo via Zoom (Administrative 
Supervisor), David Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO) 

Visitors: 24 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 2pm MST. Secretary Carden called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Blake seconded to adopt the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. President Report
• Winding down this year Board year.
• Accomplishments include: renovating Canoa Hills, finished the fitness center at Desert

Hills, Glass Arts at Santa Rita Springs, the Artisan Shop expansion contract approval is
on the Agenda for this meeting, changes for the Corporate Policy Manual (CPM), and
Bylaw changes.

• Thanked members for writing to the Board over the last year with concerns.
• Thanked the CEO Scott Somers and his staff for all their support.

4. CEO Report
A. CEO Monthly Report

• Artisan Shop expansion contract approval is on the Agenda for today.
• Lapidary expansion project is at 30 percent design completion. This project is moving

forward.
• Metal Shop expansion project had bids come in higher than budgeted. After talks with

the Metal Shop and architects the scope of work is being refined to lower the bids.
Recommendations will come before the Board at the April Regular meeting.

• The home sales have been positive for the first two months of 2025. The initiatives
fund is tighter due to the low house sales in 2024. This will delay the West Center
lobby project to make sure the funds are available for the Metal Arts project.

12

Consent Agenda 7.A.1



• Desert Hills locker room will be remodeled in conjunction with expanding and
improving the Ceramics kiln room. The floor joist needs to be shored up for the kilns.
The locker room and kiln project should have bids back by March 14 and will bring the
contract approval before the Board in April.

• Desert Hills pool equipment upgrade will happen without having to replace the pool.
Upgrades will be to the mechanical room, plumbing, and filters.

• Another project that is being considered this year is new pickleball courts at the
Pickleball Center or Canoa Ranch. The Pickleball Club is doing fundraisers for this
project.

5. Presentations
A. GVR Foundation Award of Member Assistance Program Funds to GVR

David Webster, CFO, explained the MAP Program including these highlights:
• 141 applications for MAP were received this year.
• Members applying for MAP received one of the following: 50 percent award, 75

percent, with the majority receiving 100 percent award.
• The amount designated does depend on the money that is received for the MAP

program.

Beverly Tobiason. Chair for the GVR Foundation, presented GVR with a check for $25,000. 

President Garneau thanked the Foundation for contributing to the MAP fund. 

6. Committee Reports – All reports have been placed on file.
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs
C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve Consent Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: January 22, 2025
2) BOD Work Session Minutes: February 19, 2025

B. Financial Statements:
1) January Financials

C. Business:
1) Amend CPM on MRR-A 110 Percent Rule
2) Approval of 2025 Annual Workplan

8. Action Items
A. Award Contract for Artisan Shop Improvements

MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Blake seconded to award a contract for the
Artisan Shop expansion project to Building Excellence in an amount not to exceed
$31,515.
Passed: unanimous

13



B. Approve Request for Non-Member Attendance for Pickleball Tournament
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director English seconded to authorize the GVR
Pickleball Club to allow non-competing non-GVR members to attend their March 15 – 16
fundraising competition with appropriate guest fees which will be relayed to GVR.
Passed: unanimous

C. Amend the CPM sections pertaining to Maintenance Repair and Replacement parts A&B as
drafted AND approve contracting with Browning to complete the CY 2025 Reserve Study –
onsite required in CY 22025
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Bachelor seconded to approve the FAC
recommendation to maintain the MRR-A and MRR-B as separate reserves with Browning
as the contractor for MRR-A Reserve and for Browning to complete an onsite CY 2025
Reserve Study. Staff will complete a Reserve Report for MRR-B annually and post on the
website. Second part of Motion is to amend the CPM Part 5 Fiscal/Accounting sections
pertaining to Maintenance Repair and Replacement parts A (5.3.3) & B (5.3.4) with a
change to B by striking Study and replace with “Report completed by staff”, as drafted.
Passed: unanimous

D. Amend CPM Procurement Policy
MOTION: Director Johnson moved, Director Blake seconded to adopt a FAC
recommendation to amend the Corporate Policy Manual Reserve and Procurement
Policies.
Passed: unanimous

E. Amend CPM Changes to Part 1: 1.2.6.A-E Use of GVR Facilities
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Carden seconded to amend sections of the
CPM associated with Use of GVR Facilities and Rental Fees as presented.
Passed: unanimous

Note: The CPM used for the attachment was from an older, not up-to-date CPM, which
still had old information regarding the Smoking and Vaping section. The current CPM has
been updated to include the new language for the Smoking and Vaping section.

9. Member Comments - 3

10. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Carden seconded to adjourn the meeting at
3:59pm.
Passed: unanimous

14



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

February Financial Highlights 
Prepared By: David Webster, CFO Meeting Date: March 18, 2025 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO Consent Agenda: Yes 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Review Financial highlights. 

Strategic Plan: 
Goal 4 Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members 

Background Justification: 
The Board has requested a separate staff report stating the highlights for each month. 

Key Points/Highlights for January: 
1. February MCF fees/home sales  61 vs  63 budgeted

1. YTD MCF fees  129 actual vs  120 budgeted
2. March MCF fees  projected to be 90 compared to a budget of 100

2. Utilities  are under budget
3. YTD Program revenue is  40% under budget and 9% under 2024 actual

1. Recreation team is confident this will rebound
4. Credit Card Revenue is under budget which is offset by credit card expenses  which also

under budget
5. GVR Personnel is  under budget 5% YTD however s taff believes  this  favorable

variance will be reduced as  open positions  are filled
6. Printing and IT expense both under budget (79% and 76%) however s taff expects

to spend the budgeted amount by year end

Consent Agenda 7.B.1

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Work Session 

Amend the GVR Bylaws Check Signing 
Requirement

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO      Meeting Date: March 19, 2025 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO  Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 
Action Requested: 
Per the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) recommendation, create a ballot measure for the 2026 
election that asks the members to amend Article VII, Section 4 of the GVR Bylaws to require 
that checks greater than $10,000.00 be signed by (1) one officer and the Chief Executive 
Officer.   

Strategic Plan: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members.  

Background Justification: 
Article VII Section 4 of the GVR Bylaws states Signing of Checks:  “Any check in the amount of 
$2,500 or more shall be signed by two (2) officers of The Corporation or by one (1) officer and 
the Chief Executive Officer. Any check in an amount of less than $2,500 may be signed by the 
CEO with the stipulation that a log is kept reflecting the two (2) department heads that 
reviewed the checks prior to its execution. Month-end statements shall be reviewed by two 
(2) officers of The Corporation as soon as practicable after their completion.”  The FAC has
recommended this amount be increased to $10,000.

Fiscal Impact: 
This change will have no direct fiscal impact and will establish a more reasonable threshold 
for which to provide financial oversight.   

Board Options: 
1) Per the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC) recommendation, create a ballot measure for

the 2026 election that asks the members to amend Article VII, Section 4 of the GVR
Bylaws to require that checks greater than $10,000.00 be signed by (1) one officer
and the Chief Executive Officer.

2) Maintain the current language.
3) Table this decision at this time.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

28

Action Item  8.A



Recommended Motion: 
I move to create a ballot measure for the 2026 election that asks the members to amend 
Article VII, Section 4 of the GVR Bylaws to require that checks greater than $10,000.00 be 
signed by (1) one officer and the Chief Executive Officer.   

Attachments: 
1) Redlined Bylaws

29



ARTICLE VII — OFFICERS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Section 4: Responsibilities of Officers 

E. Signing of Checks.  Any check in the amount of $2,500.00 10,000.00 or more shall be signed

by two (2) officers of The Corporation or by one (1) officer and the Chief Executive Officer. Any

check in an amount of less than $2,500.0010,000.00 may be signed by the CEO with the

stipulation that a log is kept reflecting the two (2) department heads that reviewed the checks

prior to its execution. Month-end statements shall be reviewed by two (2) officers of The

Corporation as soon as practicable after their completion.

30

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Amendment to San Ignacio Villa CC&R 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: March 19, 2025 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested: 
Approve an amendment to the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) requested by 
San Ignacio Villas HOA 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The San Ignacio Villas HOA recently approved updating their C C & Rs. The main changes 
were to remove the Declarant, along with amending other language to comply with current 
statutes.  

While this is an unusual request from an HOA, GVR’s corporate attorney has no concerns 
with the amendment. However, he has advised the President sign the amendment, rather 
than the CEO, due to Article VII, Section 4.A of the Bylaws: 

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and at meetings of 
the membership and shall carry out all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors 
and shall sign all formal written instruments such as notes, leases, mortgages, deeds, 
and contracts other than recurring operational contracts which the Board by 
appropriate resolution has exempted from this requirement.  Contracts signed by the 
President must receive prior legal review and Board approval. 

Board Options: 
1. Approve an amendment to the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs)

requested by San Ignacio Villas HOA as drafted
2. Elect to deny approval of the amendment to the Covenants, Conditions, and

Restrictions (CC&Rs) requested by San Ignacio Villas HOA as drafted

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to approve an amendment to the Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) 
requested by San Ignacio Villas HOA 

Attachments: 
1) CC&Rs Amendment to Article VIII, Section 8.10 for San Ignacio Villa HOA

31

Action Item 8.B



Page 1 of 3 

WRITTEN CONSENT 
Re: Amendment to Article VIII, Section 8.10 

A. WHEREAS, the Declaration of Establishment of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for San
Ignacio Villas (the “Original Declaration”), was initially recorded December 23, 1996 in Docket
10447 at Page 1311 et seq., in the office of the Pima County Recorder, and was subsequently
re-recorded January 17, 1997 in Docket 10464 at Page 1629 et seq., in the office of the Pima
County Recorder to include recording information; and

B. WHEREAS, Article VIII, Section 8.10 of the Original Declaration provides that the consent of
Green Valley Recreation, Inc. (“GVR”) is required to amend said Section 8.10.

NOW, THEREFORE, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. hereby consents to the following amendments to 
Article VIII, Section 8.10: 

SECTION 8.10.  Membership in Green Valley Recreation, Inc.; Payment of Separate 

Additional Assessments.  Green Valley Recreation, Inc. is a non-profit corporation 

organized under the laws of the State of Arizona and has been formed for the purpose of 

maintaining facilities and services for social and recreational facilities in Green Valley. On 

November 8, 1978, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. recorded that certain Master Deed 

Restriction in Docket 5900 at page 894, Pima County records, establishing a method to 

incorporate land within its jurisdictional area. 

The Properties are a part of that area, and each purchaser of a Lot within the Properties, 

by the payment of the purchase price and acceptance of a deed, agrees for himself, his 

heirs, successors and assigns, to be bound by the rules and regulations thereof, to pay all 

membership dues assessed by Green Valley Recreation, Inc., and to comply with all 

provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. The 

properties and each Lot subsequently purchased are made subject to said Master Deed 

Restriction. There is hereby created a lien with power of sale, encumbering each Lot 

subsequently purchased to secure payment of the aforesaid membership dues and 

assessments, provided that no action shall be brought to foreclose such lien or proceed 

under the power of sale prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days after a notice and claim 

of lien is mailed to the Owner of such Lot and a copy of the lien is recorded in the office 

of the Recorder of Pima County, Arizona. 

Each Owner acknowledges the benefit to the Properties afforded by the existence of 

Green Valley Recreation, Inc., and the facilities it offers for the enhancement of the 

general plan of development. 

32

Attachment 1



Page 2 of 3 

Any lien claimed or recorded in favor of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. or its successors 

and assigns shall at all times be subordinate to the lien for unpaid assessments created 

by these covenants and shall also, to the same extent as set forth herein with regard to 

the lien for unpaid assessments, be subordinate to the lien of any First Mortgage. The 

provisions hereof dealing with Green Valley Recreation, Inc., and its assessments shall 

constitute covenants running with the land in the same fashion as all other covenants, 

conditions and restrictions of this Declaration. This Section may not be amended without 

the consent of both Declarant and Green Valley Recreation, Inc., except that the consent 

of Declarant shall no longer be necessary after all the Lots have been conveyed to persons 

other than Declarant. 

Notwithstanding the above, the lien of Green Valley Recreation, Inc., shall not extend to 
any portion of the Properties while owned by Declarant and/or Developer and Declarant 
and Developer shall be exempt from paying membership fees and assessments, unless 
Declarant and/or Developer own Lots within the Properties that are used and occupied 
as dwelling units at the time the membership fees become due and payable. 

*** 

Deletions above, if any, are indicated by strikethrough, and additions, if any, are indicated by underline. 

Other than the deletions and additions as stated above, Article VIII, Section 8.10 will remain unchanged. 

<<<SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE>>> 

33



Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Green Valley Recreation, Inc. has caused this Written Consent to be duly 

executed as of ________________, 2025.  

GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC., an Arizona non-profit 
corporation 

By: ______________________________________ 
      Scott Somers 
Its: Chief Executive Officer 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
:    ss: 

County of Pima ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of _______________, 2025, by 
Scott Somers, Chief Executive Officer of GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC., an Arizona non-profit 
corporation, on behalf of the corporation.   

______________________________________ 
Notary Public 

34




